STATE OF MICHIGAN

GRETCHEN WHITMER DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS ORLENE HAWKS
GOVERNOR LANSING DIRECTOR
AGENDA

MICHIGAN FIRE FIGHTERS TRAINING COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
WORK SESSION - RULES
Delta Township Fire Department — Training Room
811 N. Canal Road, Lansing, Ml 48917
Tuesday, September 24, 2019

9:00 AM

l. Roll Call Chairperson Tackett
Il. Approval of Agenda Chairperson Tackett
[ll.  Communications Chairperson Tackett
IV. New Business:

a. Fire Fighter Training Council General Rules Fire Marshal Sehlmeyer

Update

V. Public Comment
VI.  Council Comment
VII.  Adjournment Chairperson Tackett

BUREAU OF FIRE SERVICES
3101 TECHNOLOGY BLVD., SUITE H ¢ P.O. BOX 30700 ¢ LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan.gov/bfs e 517-241-8847
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program.



DRAFT as of 9-5-19
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS

FIRE FIGHTERS TRAINING COUNCIL
GENERAL RULES
Filed with the secretary of state on

These rules become effective immediately upon filing with the secretary of
state unless adopted under section 33, 44, or 45a(6) of the administrative
procedures act of 1969, 1969 PA 306, MCL 24.233, 24.444, or 24.245a. Rules
adopted under these sections become effective 7 days after filing with the
secretary of state.

(By authority conferred on the fire fighters training council by section 16 of
1966 PA 291 MCL 29.376, and Executive Order Reorganization N0.1997-2,
2003-1, and 2011-4, MCL 29.451, 445.2011 and 445.2030)

R 29.401, R 29.402, R 29.403, R 29.405, R 29.410, R 29.413, R 29.414, and R
29.415 of the Michigan Administrative Code are amended, and R 29.405a, R
29.405b, R 29.405c, R 29.405d, R 29.405e¢, R 29.405f, R 29.405¢, R 29.405h, R
29.405i, R 29.405j, R 29.405k, R 29.405I, R 29.405m, R 29.405n, R 29.4050, R
29.405p, R 29.405(q, R 29.410a, R 29.410b, R 29.416, R 29.417, and R 29.418
are added to the Code, and R 29.404, R 29.408, R 29.408a, R 29.408b, R
29.408c, R 29.408d, R 29.408e, R 29.408f, and R 29.409 of the Code are
rescinded, as follows:

PART 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

R 29.401 Definitions.

Rule 1. As used in these rules:

(a)"Act" means the firefighters training council act, 1966 PA 291, MCL 29.361
to 29.377.

(b) “Authority having jurisdiction (AHJ)” means an organization, office, or
individual responsible for enforcing the requirements of a code or
standard, or for approving equipment, materials, an installation, or a
procedure.

(c) “Bureau” means the bureau of fire services, in the department of
licensing and regulatory affairs.

(d) “Cadet” means a fire fighter who is participating in a training course,

is between 16 and 18 years of age, and participates in a council registered
and approved cadet program offered by a fire department.

June 5, 2019



(e) “Current edition” means the respective professional qualifications in
the current and appropriate national fire protection association (nfpa)
standard.

(f) “Curriculum work group” means a group of fire service members
appointed by the chairperson of the council. The curriculum work group
reviews curriculum making recommendations for new or updated
curriculum to the bureau and the council. The curriculum work group
assists in the validation of the various classification examinations
offered by the bureau.

e} (9) “Department” means the department of licensing and regulatory affairs;

) (h) “Emergency medical services and instructor coordinator license, or
ems/ic license,” means a license issued by the department of community health
pursuant to the public health code, 1978 PA 368, MCL 333.20901 to 333.20979.

(i) “Equivalent” means certifications from another state’s certifying
agency, which meet the current nfpa standard for the classification.

() “Explorer” means a fire fighter who is participating in a training
course, is between 16 and 18 years of age, and participates in a council-
approved fire department boy or girl scouts of America explorer program.

(K) “Information management system” means the bureau’s system used
to track an individual’s fire department membership, council-approved
training, and certification.

(k) “Materially false statement” means a false writing or document that
contains any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or entry.

() “Pre-service student” means an individual who is taking fire fighting
classes through an approved regional training center who is not a member
of aregistered Michigan fire department.

() “Q course” means a course developed by individual subject matter
experts and is the property of the instructor who developed the approved
course. The fire fighters training council shall approve a Q course and the
instructor or instructors who teach the course shall be approved by
council. Q courses cannot be developed to circumvent council-approved
curriculum courses in which council provides certification.

(m) “RRTN” means aregional response team network for a hazardous
materials response.

(n) “RTC” means aregional training center.

(o) “RTC student” means an individual who is taking fire fighting classes
through an approved regional training center and who may or may not be
registered with a fire department. Service time at a regional training center



does not count toward fire department service time unless the individual is
registered as a fire department member during the time at the RTC.

(q) “Revoked” means removal of certification by this state or another
state.

(r) “Revocation” means the bureau revoked an individual’s certification
as part of a disciplinary process approved by the council.

(S) “Third party authorization” means any course owned by a private
curriculum provider and which an instructor is required by the developer to
meet the developer’s requirements to teach the course.

R 29.402 Council approved course; instruction hours; recognition of training by
council.

Rule 2. (1) The council approved course shall be evaluated by the curriculum
work group based upon all of the following:

(a) The time required to adequately cover the subject material.

(b) Whether the Fhe-ability-of an-average-class-to-acecomplish curriculum
meets the established goals and objectives.

(c) #srelevaney Whether the curriculum is relevant to the needs of the fire
service in this state.

(2) An instruction hour shall consist of 50 minutes of instruction time and 10
minutes break time, totaling 1 actual hour.

R 29.403 Certification Examinations examinations; development; passing
scores.

Rule 3. (1) Pursuant to section 9(2)(b) of the act, MCL 29.369(2)(b), the
state fire marshal, with the approval of a majority of the council, shall
develop and administer Fhe-firefightertand-H examinations certification
examinations for all of the following fire service disciplines:

(a) Fire chief.

(b) Fire inspector.

(c) Fire service instructor.

(d) Fire investigator.

(e) Fire officer.

(f) Public safety director.

(g) Plans examiner.

(h) Fire fighter.

(i) Hazardous materials responder.

() Technical rescue responder.

(k) Airport rescue fire fighter.

(2)-shall-be-approved-by-the-counciland The examinations shall be reviewed
by department bureau staff to ascertain if there is adequate comprehension of
the subject material tested in the examinations.

(3) The examination for firefighter | and Il may be combined into 1 part of the
examination to test the knowledge and skill requirements in the current edition

of standards for fire fighter professional gualifications, national fire protection



asseciation-nfpa;standard-1001, “Standard for Fire Fighter Professional

PART 2. CLASSIFICATIONS

R 29.405 Classification for fire-fighters fire fighter | with hazardous materials
operations; fire fighter Il; fire fighter 1 and Il with hazardous materials
operations; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5. (1)The following are the classifications for fire fighter | with hazardous
materials operations, and fire fighter Il, fire fighter | and 1l with hazardous
materials operations, pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369: .

(a) A fire fighter | is apersen an individual who successfully passes the
council-approved fire fighter | with hazardous materials operations exam,
which covers the skill and knowledge requirements for fire fighter | in the current
edition of nfpa 1001, “Standard for Fire Fighter Professional Qualifications”, as
adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(b) A fire fighter 1l is a fire fighter | who meets the requirements of subdivision
(a) of this rule and successfully passes the council approved fire fighter 1l exam,
which covers the skill and knowledge requirements for fire fighter 1l specified in



the current edition of nfpa 1001, standard; “Standard for Fire Fighter
Professional Qualifications”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(c) Afirefighter I and Il with hazardous materials operations is an
individual who passes a council-approved fire fighter 1 and Il with
hazardous materials operations exam, which covers the skill and
knowledge requirements for fire fighter 1 and Il in the current edition of nfpa
1001, “Standard for Fire Fighter Professional Qualifications”, as adopted by
reference in R 29.410.

(2) An individual who attends a course for fire fighter | with hazardous
materials operations, fire fighter Il, and fire fighter | and Il with hazardous
materials operations shall be 18 years of age or older on the date of the
final written and practical examinations except for any of the following:

(&) An individual who is sponsored by a fire department cadet program or
fire department boy or girl scouts of America explorer program.

(b) A fire department cadet or explorer who is between 16 and 18 years of
age, and is still attending high school as a full time student.

(3) A cadet or explorer is only allowed to participate in fire fighter | with
hazardous materials operations, fire fighter Il, or fire fighter | and Il with
hazardous materials operations programs and the incident command and
resource management program for the fire service.

(4) A request for an exception to subrule (2) of this rule, such as a cadet or
explorer program, shall be submitted to the bureau region coordinator on
letterhead from the chief of the sponsoring fire department and include a
dated copy of the charter or resolution of the local unit of government
authorizing a fire department cadet or explorer program within the fire
department.

(5) An individual shall participate in a registered fire fighter | with
hazardous materials operations or fire fighter |1 and Il with hazardous
materials operations course to be eligible to take the state written and
practical certification exams.

(5) An individual who attends a council-approved fire fighter course or
courses to qualify for the certification examinations shall comply with both
of the following:

(i) An individual shall not be absent from more than 10% of the total
lecture hours of an entire course as validated by the course manager. A
course manager may provide flexibility in attendance as needed in fire
fighter courses due to the length of the course and an individual’s
employment obligations. An individual who is provided flexibility in
attendance shall make up missed hours and classes prior to the scheduled
ending date of the course. An individual shall meet 90% of the lecture
hours and 100% of the practical skills hours. A course manager shall
enforce the bureau make up policy.

(i) An individual who completes make up training at his or her fire or
public safety department shall complete the bureau’s make-up training
form, BB8N255, for each make-up session authorized by the course
manager. The fire chief or public safety director shall sign the form and



return the form to the course manager for inclusion in the final course
paperwork submitted to the bureau via email.

(6) An individual who is currently certified in this state and who meets
continuing education requirements for a fire fighter I, as specified in R
29.418, shall be allowed to take the fire fighter Il written and practical
examinations without attending the fire fighter Il course. These
examinations shall be completed at an examination site registered in the
bureau’s information management system.

(7) An individual shall complete the requirements in the MIOSHA
occupational health standard part 451 respiratory protection, R 325.60051
and R 325.60052, while participating in either the council-approved fire
fighter | with hazardous materials operations course, the fire fighter I
course, or the fire fighter |1 and Il with hazardous materials operations
course. An individual who participates in council-approved courses that
require respiratory protection or equipment to be worn shall be completely
free of facial hair that comes between the sealing surface of the facepiece
and face or that interferes with valve function or any condition that
interferes with face-to-face piece seal or valve function.

(8) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, for certification prior to taking the state certification
examination.

(9) An individual who is certified in another state’s certifying agency and is
applying for reciprocity certification from this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications from
another state’s certifying agency or who has armed forces certification that
was granted under honorable conditions and that meets the current edition
of nfpa 1001, “Standard for Fire Fighter Professional Qualifications”, shall
complete the bureau’s request for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit
the form to the bureau.

R 29.405a Classification for fire chief; requirements; reciprocity. [Nilcmg

Rule 5a. (1) The following is the classification for fire chief pursuant to
section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(a) A fire chief is an individual who is certified as a fire fighter Il and
successfully passes the council-approved fire officer curriculum prior to
October 1, 2019 or passes the bureau-approved certification examination
which covers the skill and knowledge requirements for fire officer | or fire
officer Il as provided in subrule(1)(b) and (c) of this rule and in the current
edition of nfpa 1021, “Standard for Fire Officer Professional Qualifications”,
as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(b) A fire chief in a service jurisdiction covering a census population of
less than 10,000 shall be certified to the fire officer | level 24 months from
the date of hire and shall receive Michigan fire chief certification.



(c) A fire chief in a service jurisdiction with a census population of 10,000
or more shall be certified to the fire officer Il level 36 months from the date
of hire and shall receive Michigan fire chief certification.

(d) An individual at the fire chief level for his or her jurisdiction prior to
the effective date of these rules is considered to have met the requirements
of subrule (1)(b) and (c) of this rule.

(2) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application,
BFS 205, for certification prior to taking the state certification exam.

(3) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. to-apphr-fortreciprocity- ldividuals An
individual who have has certifications from another state’s certifying
agency must shall complete the bureau’s BFS-258 request for reciprocity
form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain Michigan fire
chief certification.

R 29.405b Classification for fire inspector; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5b. (1) The following is the classification for fire inspector pursuant
to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(a) A fire inspector is an individual who is certified as meeting the
requirements of the bureau’s fire inspector certification rules, R 29.501 to R
29.508, and who has successfully completed the bureau-approved fire
inspector certification process, which covers the skill and knowledge
requirements for fire inspector in the current edition of nfpa 1031,
“Standard for Professional Qualifications for Fire Inspector and Plan
Examiner”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(b) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS 205, for certification.

(c) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. to-apphyforreciprocity- trdividuals-An
individual who have has certifications from another state’s certifying
agency must shall complete the BFS-258 the bureau’s request for
reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire inspector certification.

R 29.405c Classification for fire instructor I; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5c. (1) The following is the classification for fire instructor | pursuant
to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) An individual seeking to instruct council approved courses shall
complete the following:

(&) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application,
BFS-205, for certification prior to taking the state certification course.



(a) A fire instructor | is an individual who is certified as a fire fighter II,
has a minimum of 3 years of experience, not including pre-service,
cadet, or explorer experience, from his or her first fire fighter
certification prior to beginning the fire instructor | requirements, and
has passed the fire instructor | written examination with a score of
70% or higher and pass the practical examination.

(b) A fire instructor | shall have completed 6 hours of lecture and 6 hours of
practical skills training in an instructional setting with a certified fire
service instructor | or higher present, and within 24 months of completing
the nfpa 1041 fire service instructor | course, as adopted by reference in R
29.410, and shall submit the mentoring form, BFS-253, to the bureau.

(3) An individual only seeking fire instructor | for his or her fire officer
certification shall complete the requirements for fire instructor I and shall
successfully pass the council-approved nfpa 1041 “Standard for Fire
Service Instructor Professional Qualifications” fire instructor | written
examination with a score of 70% or higher and pass the practical
examination. This individual shall not be required to comply with the
continuing education requirement for fire instructor, is exempt from the 3
year experience requirement, and cannot instruct council approved
courses.

(5) A fire instructor 1 who is certified as of the effective date of these rules
and who has passed a council-approved train-the-trainer course may
instruct that course provided that he or she receives and maintains third-
party authorization, if required.

(6) A fire instructor 1 who is certified as of the effective date of these rules
may continue to instruct the courses that he or she had been previously
authorized to teach.

(7) A fire service instructor | is authorized to instruct only council-
approved fire fighter | with hazardous materials operations , fire fighter I,
or fire fighter I and Il with hazardous materials operations curriculum,
which does not apply to council approved Q courses or local AHJ-specific
continuing education.

(8) A fire service instructor | who is certified under this classification shall
meet the MIOSHA occupational health standard part 451 respiratory
protection, R 325.60051 and R 325.60052. When teaching any council-
approved course other than Q courses, the instructor shall be completely
free of facial hair that comes between the sealing surface of the facepiece
and face or that interferes with valve function or any condition that
interferes with face-to- facepiece seal or valve function.



(9) An individual shall meet the continuing education requirements
pursuant to R29.418 in order to maintain certification for the fire instructor |
classification.

(10) An individual shall be certified at the previous certification prior to
taking the next level of certification pursuant to nfpa 1041 “Standard for
Fire Service Instructor Professional Qualifications”.

(11) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency
and is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member
or employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. to-apphrforreciprocity- hdividuals An
individual who have has certifications from another state’s certifying
agency ceurse-must shall complete the bureau’s BFS-258 request for
reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire instructor | certification.

R 29.405d Classification for fire service instructor Il; requirements;
reciprocity.

Rule 5d. (1) The following is the classification for fire service instructor Il
pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application,
BFS-205, for certification prior to taking the state certification course. An
individual shall be certified at the previous certification level prior to taking
the next level of certification pursuant to nfpa 1041 “Standard for Fire
Service Instructor Professional Qualifications”.

(2) A fire service instructor Il is an individual who is certified as a fire
service instructor | and has a minimum of 5 years of service, not including
pre-service, cadet, or explorer service, from his or her initial fire fighter
certification prior to beginning the fire service instructor Il requirements
and 40 hours of documented and verifiable instructional hours.

(3) A fire service instructor Il shall have successfully passed the council-
approved nfpa 1041 “Standard for Fire Service Instructor Professional
Qualifications” fire instructor Il written examination with a score of 70% or
higher and passed the practical examination.

(4) A fire service instructor Il who was certified prior to the effective date
of these rules, may continue to instruct the courses that he or she had
been previously authorized to teach.

(5) A fire instructor Il who is certified after the effective date of these rules
and who has successfully completed a council approved course may
instruct that course provided that he or she receives and maintains third-
party authorization, if required.



10

(6) An individual who has attended and passed the council-approved fire
instructor Il certification course and completed the bureau’s fire instructor |
train-the-trainer course is authorized to instruct the council-approved fire
instructor | certification course.

(7) A fire instructor Il as of the effective date of these rules shall be
allowed to instruct council-approved fire instructor Il courses for a period
of three years from the effective date of these rules, provided the individual
meets the following requirements:

(a) attended and passed the council-approved fire instructor Il
certification course.
(b) instructed two council-approved fire instructor | certification courses
(c) completed the bureau’s fire instructor Il train-the-trainer course
(d) obtain the council-approved fire instructor Il certification within three
years of the effective date of these rules to continue to instruct council-
approved fire instructor Il courses.

(8) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire instructor Il certification.

R 29.405e Classification for fire service instructor Ill; requirements;
reciprocity.

Rule 5e. (1) The following is the classification for fire service instructor Il
pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application,
BFS-205, for certification prior to taking the state certification course. An
individual shall be certified at the previous certification level prior to taking
the next level of certification pursuant to nfpa 1041 “Standard for Fire
Service Instructor Professional Qualifications”.

(2) A fire service instructor lll is an individual who is certified as a fire
service instructor Il and has a minimum of 7 years of service, not including
pre-service, cadet, or explorer service, from his or her initial fire fighter
certification, prior to beginning the fire service instructor Ill requirements
and 80 hours of documented and verifiable instructional hours.

(3) A fire service instructor lll shall have successfully passed the council-
approved nfpa 1041 “Standard for Fire Service Instructor Professional
Qualifications” fire service instructor Il written examination with a score of



11

70% or higher and pass the practical examination which covers the skill
and knowledge requirements for fire service instructor Ill in the current
edition of nfpa 1041, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(4) A fire service instructor Ill is authorized to instruct any council-
approved course that the instructor has completed and passed, provided
that he or she receives and maintains third-party authorization, if required.

(5) A fire instructor Il who has attended and passed the council approved
fire instructor Il certification course, instructed two council-approved fire
instructor | certification courses, and completed the bureau’s fire instructor
Il train-the-trainer course is authorized to instruct the council-approved fire
instructor Il certification course.

(6) A fire instructor Il who has attended and passed the council approved
fire instructor lll certification course, instructed two council-approved fire
instructor Il certification courses, and completed the bureau’s fire
instructor Il train-the-trainer course is authorized to instruct the council-
approved fire instructor Il certification course.

(7) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire instructor Ill certification.

R 29.405f Certified fire service instructors; certified associate fire service
instructors; requirements.

Rule 5f. (1) The following are the classifications for certified fire service
instructors and certified associate fire service instructors pursuant to
section 9 of the act, MCL 29.3609.

(3) As of the effective date of these rules, an instructor who is approved
by the bureau as a certified fire instructor, according to qualifications
established prior to 2010, shall maintain his or her status as a certified fire
service instructor.

(4) As of the effective date of these rules, a certified associate fire
instructor who is approved by the bureau, according to qualifications
established prior to September 30, 2019, shall maintain his or her status as
a certified associate fire instructor.

(5) As of September 30, 2021, in order to become a certified associate fire
instructor, a probationary associate fire instructor must:

(a) complete the required mentoring process
(b) pass an evaluation by a Bureau training coordinator



12

(6) A certified fire service instructor and a certified associate fire service
instructor may teach all courses he or she was authorized to instruct
provided that he or she receives and maintains third-party authorization, if
required.

R 29.405g Classification for fire investigator; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5fg. (1) The following is the classification for fire investigator
pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) A fire investigator is an individual who successfully passed the
council-approved fire investigator process which covers the skill and
knowledge requirements for fire investigator in the current edition of nfpa
1033, “Standard for Professional Qualifications for Fire Investigator”, as
adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(3) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, for certification.

(4) An individual shall have successfully passed the examination for any
of the following programs or courses prior to applying to the bureau:

(a) Michigan state police basic fire investigation school.

(b) National fire academy fire investigation course.

(5) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire investigator certification.

R 29.405h Classification of fire officer I; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5h. (1) The following is the classification for fire officer | pursuant to
section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.
End of council’s review on 9/5/19. Below this point has not been vetted or
thoroughly discussed by the whole Michigan Fire Fighters Training
Council.

(2) An individual who is applying for certification as a fire officer | shall be
a certified fire fighter Il and fire service instructor | prior to beginning the
fire officer | requirements. An applicant shall have successfully completed
the job performance requirements for fire officer | prior to taking the
examination for fire officer I. {What are the job performance requirements?
How can an individual complete the job performance requirements for fire officer
| when he or she is applying for certification as a fire officer 1? This language
should be clarified.} An individual shall pass the council-approved written
examination for fire officer | with a score of 70% or higher, which meets the



13

current edition of nfpa 1021, “Standard for Fire Officer Professional
Qualifications”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(3) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, fereach-certification prior to taking the state certification

examination. An-rdirduabmustbe-certified-atthe-previous—certification-of
fire officer prior to taking the next level of fire officer certification per nfpa

2021l think this language should be removed because it doesn’t seem to
pertain to an individual who is applying for certification as a fire officer 1.}

(4) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire officer I certification.

R 29.405i Classification of fire officer II; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5i. (1) The following is the classification for fire officer Il pursuant to
section 9 of the act, MCL 29.3609.

(2) An individual who is applying for certification as a fire officer Il shall
be certified as a fire officer | prior to beginning the fire officer Il
requirements. An applicant shall have successfully completed the job
performance requirements for fire officer Il prior to taking the examination
for fire officer Il. An individual shall pass the council-approved written
examination for fire officer Il with a score of 70% or higher, which meets the
current edition of nfpa 1021, “Standard for Fire Officer Professional
Qualifications”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(3) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, prior to taking the state certification examination. An
individual shall be certified at the previous certification level of fire officer
prior to taking the next level of fire officer certification per nfpa 1021. {We
state this above in (2).}

(4) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire officer Il certification.

R 29.405j Classification of fire officer lll; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5]. (1) The following is the classification for fire officer Ill pursuant to
section 9 of the act, MCL 29.3609.

(2) An individual who is applying for certification as a fire officer Ill shall
be certified as a fire officer Il prior to beginning the fire officer Ill
requirements. An applicant shall have successfully completed the job



14

performance requirements for fire officer Ill prior to taking the examination
for fire officer Ill. An individual shall pass the council-approved written
examination for fire officer Il with a score of 70% or higher, which meets
the current edition of nfpa 1021, “Standard for Fire Officer Professional
Qualifications”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(3) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, prior to taking the state certification examination. An
individual shall be certified at the previous certification level of fire officer
prior to taking the next level of fire officer certification per nfpa 1021.

(4) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire officer Ill certification.

R 29.405k Classification of fire officer IV; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5k. (1) The following is the classification for fire officer IV pursuant
to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) An individual who is applying for certification as a fire officer IV shall
be certified as a fire officer Ill prior to beginning the fire officer IV
requirements. An applicant shall have successfully completed the job
performance requirements for fire officer IV prior to taking the examination
for fire officer IV. An individual shall pass the council-approved written
examination for fire officer IV, with a score of 70% or higher, which meets
the current edition of nfpa 1021, “Standard for Fire Officer Professional
Qualifications”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(3) An individual may take the fire officer IV course provided that he or
she meets the fire service instructor requirement and possesses the
current nfpa 1021 fire officer |, Il, and Il Michigan certifications.

(4) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, prior to taking the state certification examination. An
individual shall be certified at the previous certification level of fire officer
prior to taking the next level of fire officer certification per nfpa 1021.

(5) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire officer IV certification.

R 29.405I Michigan fire officer equivalency.
Rule 5l. (1) Language is needed to introduce/explain the rule. The language
for the rest of the rule seems incomplete.}



15

(2) Previous Michigan fire officer certifications include all of the
following:

(a) Fire officer | (EO1A, EO1B).

(b) Fire officer Il (EO2A, E01B).

(c) Fire officer Il (EO3A).

(d) Michigan company officer | and Il series (O21A).

(e) Michigan fire officer lll series (O31A). {What do the abbreviations after
each item mean? Please explain or rewrite the language.}

(3) A Michigan fire service member who has obtained any Michigan fire
officer certificates prior to October 1, 2019 and is certified to the nfpa 1041
fire service instructor | level or higher, may apply to take the current nfpa
1021 fire officer I, nfpa 1021 fire officer Il, nfpa 1021 fire officer Ill, and nfpa
1021 fire officer IV certification examinations. All fire officer certifications
shall be obtained be-taken in order as required in nfpa 1021. An individual
shall pass any Al nfpa 1021 fire officer certification examinations mustbe
passed with a score of 70% or higher.

I (F'e) il ”'.d'“'.dl"al faytake E.I'e hee G||IG|8I * eeulsle previcea t;'e* I
b b —H Feh Hicatt —{This provision was moved to R
29.405Kk.}

R 29.405m Classification of public safety director; requirements;
reciprocity.

Rule 5m. (1) The following is the classification for public safety director
as-pursuant in section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) An individual who is applying for certification as a A public safety
director is-a-persenantrdividualwho-is shall be certified as a fire fighter Il
and shal-have successfully passed the council-approved fire officer
curriculum prior to October 1, 2019 or passed the bureau-council-approved
written certification examination {For what certification?} which covers the
skill and knowledge requirements for fire officer Il or fire officer Il as stated
provided in 29.405i or R 29.405j in the current edition of nfpa 1021,
“Standard for Fire Officer Professional Qualifications”, as adopted by
reference in R 29.410.

(3) A public safety director in a service jurisdiction covering a census
population of less than 10,000 shall be certified to the fire officer Il level 24
months from the date of hire and wil-reeeive shall obtain Michigan public
safety director certification.

(4) A public safety director in a service jurisdiction with a census
population of 10,000 or more shall be certified to the fire officer Ill level 36
months from the date of hire and wiH+eeceive shall obtain Michigan public
safety director certification.

(5) An individual who was designated at the public safety director level
for their his or her jurisdiction prior to October 1, 2019 is considered to
have met the requirements of 29.405i or R 29.405;.



16

R 29.405n Classification of plans examiner; requirements; reciprocity.

Rule 5n. (1) The following is the classification for plans examiner
pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.369.

(2) An individual who is applying for certification as a plans examiner
shall be certified as meeting-thereguirementsfor a fire inspector
certification as provided in the bureau’s fire inspector certification rules, R
29.501 to R 29.508, and shall successfully complete the bureau’s approved
plans examiner process, which covers the skill and knowledge
requirements for plans examiner in the current edition of nfpa 1031,
“Standard for Professional Qualifications for Fire Inspector and Plan
Examiner”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

(b) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application
form, BFS-205, for certification.

(2) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan fire officer IV certification.

R 29.4050 Classification of hazardous materials responder; requirements;
reciprocity.

Rule 50. (1) The following is the classification for hazardous materials
responder pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.3609.

(2) A hazardous materials responder is an individual who has successfully
passed the council-approved hazardous materials responder operations
course and examination, which covers the skill and knowledge
requirements for hazardous materials responder operations in the current
edition of nfpa 1072, “Standard for Competence of Responders to
Hazardous Materials/Weapons of Mass Destruction Incidents”, as adopted
by reference in R 29.410.

(b) An individual who possesses a Michigan fire fighter | hazardous
materials operations certification or a Michigan fire fighter 1 and Il
hazardous materials operations certification meets the requirements of
hazardous materials responder operations in the current edition of nfpa
1072, “Standard for Competence of Responders to Hazardous
Materials/Weapons of Mass Destruction Incidents”, as adopted by
reference in R 29.410.

(2) Every An individual mustmake-an shall apply to the bureau on the
bureau’s application (BFS-205) form for certification, BFS 205, prior to
taking the state certification examination. An individual shall apply to the
bureau on the bureau’s application form, BFS-205, prior to taking the state
certification examination. {Should we use this language to keep consistant
throughout the rules?}



17

(3) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency
and is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member
or employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Michigan ﬁ#&emeer—w hazardous materials responder operatlons
certification. |

R 29.405p Classification of technical rescue responder; requirements;
reciprocity.

Rule 5p. (1) The following are is the classificationg for technical rescue
responder pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.3609.

(a) A technical rescue responder is apersen an individual who has
successfully passed the council-approved technical rescue responder
awareness course and examination, which covers the skill and knowledge
requirements for technical rescue responder awareness in the current
edition of nfpa 1006, “Standard for Technical Rescue Personnel
Professional Qualifications”, and nfpa 1670, “Standard on Operation and
Training for Technical Search and Rescue Incidents”, as adopted by
reference in R 29.410.

{There isn’t a (b).}

(2) Every individual must make an application (BFS-205) for certification
priorto-taking-the-statecertification-exam- An individual shall apply to the
bureau on the bureau’s application form for certification, BFS 205, prior to
taking the state certification examination. {Same as above — use same
language?}

(3) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain
Mlchlgan technlcal rescue responder certification. mamdaals—mas{—be—a




18

R 29.405q Classification of airport rescue fire fighter; requirements;
reciprocity.

Rule 5qg. (1) The following are is the classifications for airport rescue fire
fighter pursuant to section 9 of the act, MCL 29.3609.

(a) An airport rescue fire fighter is apersen an individual who has
successfully passes passed the council-approved fire fighter Il examination
and an airport rescue fire fighter course that meets the federal aviation
administration criteria found as specified in Title 14 Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 139 for initial training, 14 CFR 139 (Please add the year of
the most current version of this CFR, as required by MOAHR. This
information should be in parentheses.) Fhe-An individual who is applying
for certification as an airport rescue fire fighter shall submit to the bureau
mustprevide the federal aviation administration certification and pass the
council-approved airport rescue fire fighter certification examination, with a
minimum score of 70%, which meets the knowledge requirements in the
current edition of nfpa 1003, “Standard for Airport Fire Fighter Professional
Qualifications”, as adopted by reference in R 29.410.

{There isn’t a (b).}

(2) BEvery-ndividuabmust-make-an-appheatton(BFS-205)-forcertiftcation
priorto-taking-the-statecertification-exam- An individual shall apply to the
bureau on the bureau’s application form for certification, BFS 205, prior to
taking the state certification examination. {Use same language as before.}

(3) An individual who is certified by another state’s certifying agency and
is applying for reciprocity recognition in this state shall be a member or
employee of a Michigan fire department and entered into the bureau’s
information management system. An individual who has certifications
from another state’s certifying agency shall complete the bureau’s request
for reciprocity form, BFS 258, and submit the form to the bureau to obtain

Mlchlgan teehme&l—reseue—mspm%de# alrport rescue flre flghter




19

R 29.408a Probationary-asseciate-instructor-associate-trstructorrequirements:

Rescinded.







21

R 29.408c-astructor-—requirements—Rescinded
I ) . hall Il of the followi ifications:







23

R 29.409—nstructorapplication-process—Rescinded.
le 9. (1 I Y for hall submit hi I licat

R 29.410 Adoption by reference.

Rule 10. The current edition of the following standards of the national fire
protection association, nfpa, are adopted by reference in these rules. Copies of
the adopted standards are available for inspection and distribution at the office of



24

the Bureau of Fire Services, Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs, 3101 Technology Boulevard, Suite H, Lansing, MI 48910, or from the
National Fire Protection Association, 1 Battery Park, P.O. Box 9101 Quincy, MA
02269-9101, telephone number 1-800-344-3555. The cost of each standard at
the time of the adoption of these rules is included with the title of each standard.
{The language about how to obtain copies of the standards shouldn’t be deleted.
MOAHR requires the language be included in the rules.} Each standard is
available to be viewed on line at no cost at www.nfpa.org.

(a) NFPA 1001, Standard for Fire Fighter Professional Qualifications, 2013
edition, chapters 1, 4, 5, and 6, at cost of $ 44.50 each. {This language needs to
be updated and not deleted.}

(b) NFPA 1003, Standard for Fire Service Aircraft Firefighter Professional
Qualifications {Language about the date of the current standard and the cost of
obtaining a copy of the standard needs to be added.}

(c) NFPA 1006, Standard for Technical Rescue Personnel Professional
Qualifications{Language about the date of the current standard and the cost of
obtaining a copy of the standard needs to be added.}

(d) NFPA 1021, Standard for Fire Officer Professional Qualifications
{Language about the date of the current standard and the cost of obtaining a
copy of the standard needs to be added.}

(e) NFPA 1031, Standard for Professional Qualifications for Fire Inspector
and Plan Review {Language about the date of the current standard and the cost
of obtaining a copy of the standard needs to be added.}

(f) NFPA 1033, Standard for Professional Qualifications for Fire
Investigator {Language about the date of the current standard and the cost of
obtaining a copy of the standard needs to be added.}

—b)(g) NFPA 1041, Standard for Fire Service Instructor Professional
Qualifications, 2012 edition, at cost of $ 38.50 each. {This language needs to be
updated and not deleted.}

(h) NFPA 1072, Standard for Hazardous Materials/Weapons of Mass
Destruction Emergency Response Personnel Professional Qualifications
{Language about the date of the current standard and the cost of obtaining a
copy of the standard needs to be added.}

(i) NFPA 1670, Standard on Operations and Training for Technical Search
and Rescue Incidents {Language about the date of the current standard and the
cost of obtaining a copy of the standard needs to be added.}

PART 3. DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

R 29.410a Disciplinary process.

Rule 10a. (1) Pursuant to section 11a of the act, MCL 29.37a, the state fire
marshal shall request the council to revoke and or suspend 1 or more
classification certifications issued to an individual for any of the following
reasons:

(a) Having been convicted of a felony in any state of the United States.

(b) Making a materially false statement.


http://www.nfpa.org/

25

(c) Causing a materially false statement to be made.

(d) Committing fraud when applying for any classification certification.
(e) Wrongfully disclosing in any format, such as electronically, verbally,
or in writing, any information about an examination+aany-fermat; that the

department uses in the examination certification process.

(f) Vietation-of Violating the act or the bureau’s rules, policies, directives
or bulletins. {lIs this enforceable?}

(9) Vielation-of Violating the annual instructor memorandum of
understanding (MOU).

(2) Upon the bureau receiving notification te-the-bureaud that an individual
who is certified pursuant to the act and these rules has violated the act or
1 or more of the rules, policies, or bulletins, has-been-violated; the state fire
marshal wil-shall direct bureau staff to investigate the allegation or
allegations. The investigation wiH shall include intervewing-the-aceuser an
interview or interviews of the individual who made the allegation and any
witnesses who might-may support or negate the allegation or allegations
against the individual in question.

(3) If the allegation or allegations are substantiated, the-aceused the
individual who is accused of allegedly violating the act, or the bureau’s
rules, policies, directives, or bulletinsj shall wil be interviewed by bureau
staff, and-er the state fire marshal, or both. Upon completion of the
investigation, the bureau staff or designee {Designee of whom?} wiH-shall
submit a final report to the state fire marshal for official action. The report
wil-shall include findings of the investigation, as-weH-as all statements
given made during the investigation, and thepenalty-to-be-assessed a
recommendation of the disciplinary action to be taken.

(4) Upon completion of the investigation, the state fire marshal wiH shall
make disciplinary recommendations to the council at the next regularly
scheduled council meeting.

(5) The council wiH shall vote to uphetd-confirm or deny the state fire
marshal’s recommendation at the next regularly scheduled council
meeting.

(6) An individual who has 1 or more classification certifications
suspended as the result of a disciplinary process shall meet all of the
conditions detailed in the suspension including, but not limited to,
retraining provisions to reinstate his or her classification certification or
certifications.

(7) The decision of the council to suspend or revoke a classification
certification wiH-shall be final. An individual appeals may appeal the
decision to the council within 30 days of being notified by the council of
the suspension or revocation of a certification or certifications. An
individual who appeals the decision shall submit a letter of appeal shalt-be
sent to the bureau’s region coordinator. {What happens after the region
coordinator receives the letter?} Any suspension other than permanent
revocation of classification certification or certifications w#H shall specify
contain-established-{Not sure what is meant by “established”.} requirements



26

that mustbe-completed the individual shall complete to reinstate the
classification certification or certifications after the terms of the
suspension are met.

(8) Fhe-An individual wishing-to-appeal the-state-fire-marshal’s
recommendation-can may appeal the state fire marshal’s recommendation
at aregularly scheduled council meeting. The individual being investigated
shall be notified of thei-his or her appeal hearing at least 2 weeks prior to
the council meeting. {Should this be tied in with the beginning of (7)? It talks
about appeal.}

R 29.410b. Disciplinary appeal hearing process.

Rule 10b. (1) After the bureau’s region coordinator receives an appeal
letter, as required in R 29.410(a) of these rules, a disciplinary appeal
hearing will-shall be scheduled for the next busiress-regularly scheduled
council meeting.

(2) The individual appealing a disciplinary decision eanr may request ag
executive {The Open Meetings Handbook advises not to use this term
interchangeably with closed. /t’s not in the OMA.} closed session of the
meeting .. which-may—oe+ may-noetbe-approvedby The council shall conduct
aroll call vote on the request for ap-exeettive-closed session. A decision
to close the session shall require a-councilrolcall-vote-with a two-thirds
vote of the members present at the council meeting. majority. {l deleted
majority because a “majority” vote could be a different number than a two-thirds
vote.} {According to the open meetings act, there would only need to be a
majority vote. 15.267(1)} The investigation documentation wiH shall be
provided to the council members by bureau staff at the start of the
disciplinary appeal hearing. The chairperson of the council wil shall
preside over the disciplinary appeal hearing. If the council votes to hold a
closed session, isreguested; the disciplinary appeal hearing ean-enbybe
attended {a word is missing here} by only the council members, the state
fire marshal, or his or her designee, and the council’s recording secretary
may attend the hearing.

(3) The individual urderinrvestigation who is appealing the council’s
disciplinary decision ean-may appear with his or her legal representative.
Witnesses for beth-sides the appellant and the bureau may be called to

testlfy H durlng the d|SC|pI|nary appeal hearlng A-separate-digital

%h&dﬁemhmpy—heaﬂng.—The proceedmgs of the d|SC|pI|nary appeal
hearing should be recorded digitally by the bureau.

(4) The disciplinary appeal hearing shall be conducted as follows:

(a) Council members wil shall be given the opportunity to review the
documentation provided before proceeding.

(b) The state fire marshal, or his or her designee, wiH give shall present a
summary of the findings of the investigation and of the recommended

disciplinary action. recommended-againstthe-individual: Anry A council

member or the individual under investigation ean may direct questions to




27

the state fire marshal, or his or her designee, at this time. {The individual
appealing the decision is limited to 20 minutes to make a presentation, but there
is no limitation on the fire marshal. Should the fire marshal be limited to 20
minutes also?}

(c) The individual appealing a disciplinary decision wil-shall present his
or her statement;-thestatement-that shall not exceed 20 minutes.

(d) The state fire marshal, or his or her designee, and any council
member, may question the individual appealing a disciplinary decision
during this hearing.

(e) The state fire marshal, or his or her designee, wiH shall have 5 minutes
for to present a summary of the reasons for maintaining the council’s
disciplinary decision prior to the council vote.

(f) The individual appealing a disciplinary decision wil shall have 5
minutes for to present a summary of the reasons to overturn the
disciplinary decision prior to the council vote.

(g) The council chairperson w#H shall adjourn the closed session, {In the
OMA handbook, it is suggested that a motion is made to end the closed session
with @ majority vote needed for approval.} return to open session of the
council meeting, and request a roll-call vote to either uphold, deny, or
modify the previous council decision. {Will the vote have to be a majority of
the members present and voting a two-thirds vote of those members?}

(5) The council chairperson wilt shall announce the decision of the
council. The decision of the council wiH shall be final. Notification of the
decision will shall be made to the individual and his or her fire department.

(6) All documentation éisseminated-distributed to the council during the
closed session of the disciplinary appeal hearing te-the-ceunei regarding

the Investigation eisetphnaryhearthg shall be collected by the state fire
marshal, or his or her designee. AH-The bureau shall retain this

documentation wil-be retaired-by-the-bureau-for a minimum of ere 1 year
plus ene 1 day after the-heartrg approval of the minutes of the regular
meeting at which the closed session occurred. {This was taken out of the

OMA. 15.267} feHowing-the-approved-minutes— {Not sure why the

documentation would have to be held after the approval of the minutes.}
PART 4. TRAINING

R 29.413 Regional training centers; facilities; approval.

Rule 13. (1) An applicant shall establish a regional training center (rtc) in a
strategic location to serve the greatest number of fire departments that are
unable to support their own training program. To establish a regional training
center, an applicant shall do all of the following:

(a) Establish an advisory committee which includes appointing a the-manager

oftraining chairperson from the department rtc staff and may include any county
training committee chairpersons from the counties that will be served by the rtc.

(b) Complete-an-applicationprovided-by-the-department-Submit a letter of

intent to the appropriate bureau region coordinator to establish af rtc.



28

(c) Complete a needs survey which establishes the fire department training
needs of the area and describes how the rtc plans to fulfill those needs. Collect
any eoerrespendence documentation of support for the need of the new rtc.

(d) Have and be able to maintain the capability to conduct fire fighter | and Il
courses and examinations.

(e) Work with the department bureau in training technology development.

(2) An applicant shall submit the eempleted-application letter of intent and
supporting documentation to the department bureau region coordinator assigned
to his or her area who shall do both of the following:

(a) Contact #te’s 1 or more rtc§ that border the proposed rtc for a letter
information regarding outlining their opinion regarding the need and effect of a
potential new rtc on thek-the existing facility.

(b) Submit the application letter of intent, supporting documentation, and a
report to the bureau department on the effect a new rtc will have on existing
programs.

(3) If the application meets the requirement of subrules (1) and (2) of this rule,
the state fire marshal and-the-department-managerof-training shall approve the
application. A list of approved rtc’s may be placed on the agenda of the next
regular council meeting.

(4) An rtc shall keep contact information for the center and advisory board
membership current with the department bureau.

(5) The rtc shall perform all of the following on an annual basis:

(a) Maintain capability to conduct fire fighter | and Il courses and examinations.

(b) Comply with all department bureau rules.

(c) Cooperate with the department bureau in training technology development.

(d) Submit a report to the state fire marshal annually en by December 1(when
does the report go to the LARA Director’'s offlce) for the previous year October 1

aet—LQ@@—PA—%éL—MGL—Z—Q%@?— The annual report by each rtc shaII mclude aII of
the following: {MOAHR required “all of the following”.}

() The training activity from the previous year.

(ii) The use of approved county funds.

(i) The budget and expenses from the previous year.

(iv) The rtc training plan for the upcoming year.

(6) The state fire marshal shall authorize a regional training center to conduct
the following courses or other council-approved courses:

(a) Vehicle extrication.

(b) Advanced vehicle stabilization.

(c) Elevator training.

(d) Introduction to wild land firefighting.

(e) National incident management system: incident command and resource
management system for the fire service.

(f) Clandestine drug lab awareness.



29

—h) (g) Drivers training, classroom portion. Ag rtc shall have available rooms
and facilities to efficiently carry out its program of instruction.

R 29.414 Regionattraining-centers:coudrses: Council approved curriculum;

requirements.

Rule 14. (1) The minimum class size for trairing-at-aregionak-training-center an
approved course is 15 students. Exceptions may be granted by the a manager
of-training bureau region coordinator or state fire marshal upon recommendation
of department staff.

(2) The maximum class size at-aregionak-training-center for an approved
course is 35 students. Bepartment Bureau staff may approve larger classes if
special circumstances exist and adequate staffing is provided.

(3) Rtc students who are not members of a Michigan fire department shall
be assessed a fee per student to cover the cost of providing the
certification examination as established by the bureau by January 31 prior
to the next fiscal year. Fees shall be remitted to the bureau 2 weeks after
the course start date as provided under MCL 29.371 (1)(j). (OIS

{The language about when a fee is assessed — “by
January 31 prior to the next fiscal year” -- may need to be clarified. If the State’s
fiscal year starts in October, does that mean the fee has to be assessed in 10
months before that date in January?}
—3) (4) Students shall be at least 18 years of age on the date of the scheduled
examination. Exceptions to the requirement in this subrule shall be made for
individuals sponsored by a fire department cadet program, a fire department boy
or girl scouts of America explorer program or a high school training program that
is affiliated with a fire department pursuant to section 2 of the firefighter training
programs act, 2011 PA 153, MCL 29.332 (check for updated language).
Participants in these programs must be 16 or 17 years old and may be 18 years
old if still attending high school as a full-time student. All requests for the program
exception shall be sent to the department bureau staff in writing from the fire
chief of the sponsoring fire department.
—4) (5) The following individuals may participate in council approved training
and testing programs:

(a) Pre-service students who are enrolled in a council-approved course at an
rtc;-pursuant to an agreement with a college or university under section 10 of the
act, MCL 29.370.

(b) Fire department cadets, departmentinstructors fire department members,
certified fire service instructors, contracted training coordinators whe-are
retired-members of-afire-department, rtc staff members, council members, and
full-time department bureau staff.

(c) Explorer scouts and students of a fire department affiliated high school
program pursuant to section 2 of the firefighter training programs act, 2011 PA
153, MCL 29.332.



30

—(5) (6) Fire department cadets, explorer scouts and fire department affiliated
high school students may participate only in fire fighter I, fire fighter II, fire fighter
| and Il, first responder operations, and incident command system courses.

R 29.415 Online training courses.

Rule 15. (1) The state fire marshal, with the approval of the council, may
endorse the implementation of online learning courses.

(2) An online course must be sponsored by a recognized regional training
center or requested by a county tralnlng commlttee chalrperson ata

n-dean man duca adited-in ion higdhearle Ning :Fhe

mg+enal—#a+nmg—eente#at—the—msﬂ%u&e—ef—hrghe#|e&mmg Elther entlty shaII be
responsible for faeulty instructor training and online delivery support for faculty
instructors and students. Online courses must utilize a council approved
curriculum online learning platform. {What does “curriculum online learning
platform mean”?}

(a) A bureau region coordinator shall approve an online courses mustbe

appreved-by-aburead-region-coordinatoer in the bureau information

management system fAe not less than 6 weeks prior to the start of the
course. foreach-dehlvery-

(b) An individual eannretmiss shall not be absent from more than 10% of
the total online lecture hours of an entire course as validated by the course
manager. AlHndividuals An individual shall will {which word?} need to
make up missed hours and classes prior to the scheduled ending date of
the course. An individual mustmeet shall attend 90% of the lecture hours
and 100% of the practical skills hours. The course manager shall enforce
the bureau make up policy.

(i) The initial delivery of an online training course shall be a pilot program and
pre-approved by the council. Bepartment Bureau staff may proctor the pilot
program in order to provide an evaluation.

(i) Upon pesitive review of a report from the instructors and the course
manager evaluations-by-the-department-staff, which includes written feedback
from all of the instruetor instructors, and-a-majority all of the students, and
with a positive recommendation from the regional coordinator, the state fire
marshal shall may approve the future courses.

(b) All online training shall consist of the following:

(i) A written exam.

(i) The same learning objectives as a face-to-face training format.

(iif) A maximum student-to-instructor ratio for practical components of a
course shall be retexeeed of 20 10 students to 1 instructor.

iy luati ; | e o I N _and
department staff.

R 29.416 County training committee; selection of members; election of
chairperson.



31

Rule 16. (1) A county shall establish a county training committee to
receive the fireworks safety fees annually from the bureau, as provided in
MCL 29.371(k), 29.374

(2) A county training committee shall be made up of ere-1 member from
each organized fire department and public safety department in the county.

(3) A county training committee shall elect a chairperson each year.
Every Each fire department and public safety department in a county shall
have 1 vote when electing the chairperson. The chairperson shall serve for
the calendar year beginning January 2 and the term expires January 1 of
the following year.

(4) A county training committee shall notify the bureau about who was
elected chairperson of that committee by submitting usirg bureau form 240
by January 2 of each calendar year. as-to-who-was-elected-as-chairpersen
of-that committee:

(5) If a vacancy of the chairperson position occurs during a fiscal year, a
county training committee shall elect a new chairperson within 7 days of
the vacancy occurring and shall notify the bureau by submitting
submission-efthe BES bureau form BFS-240.

R 29.417 Training needs survey.

Rule 17. (1) A county training committee chairperson shall arauaty
conduct a training needs survey in April of each fiscal year. The survey
shall be presented on the BES bureau form BFS-243.

(2) Fhe A county training committee chairperson shall compile an
aggregate report of the results of the training needs survey including, but
not limited to, a list of the fire departments within the county and whether
they participated or did not participate in the survey.

(3) Fhe A county training committee chairperson shall submit a report to
the bureau region coordinator on the bureau form BFS-244 of the results of
the training needs survey. to-the-bureauregion-coordinrater This report
shall be submitted by May 15 of each fiscal year.

(4) A county training committee that does not submit the results of the
training needs survey wiH shall result in a delay of the October 1 release
each fiscal year of the fireworks safety fees allocated for that county
pursuant to section of 2011 PA 256, the Michigan fireworks safety
act, MCL . {Please add the statutory citation for the section of the
act that deals with the allocation of the fees.}

(5) The chairperson of a county training committee shall encumber the
county’s fireworks safety fee fund allocation by December 31 of each fiscal
year. {What does “encumber” mean? Is this the correct word to use?}

(6) The chairperson of a county training committee shall serd submit to
the bureau a detailed list of an allocated course or courses funded by the
fireworks safety fund by January 15 of each fiscal year.

PART 5. CONTINUING EDUCATION



32

R 29.418 Continuing education.
Rule 18. (1) The authority having jurisdiction may exceed the minimum
continuing education requirements as specified in this rule while

maintaining-comphiance complying with the initial and continuing training
requirements in R 408.17411. MIOSHAPart74-initial-and-continting-trathing
reguirements-:

(2) The continuing education process wiH shall apply to every member of
the fire service in Michigan. The program wiH shall run in a 3-year cycle.

(a)The first 3-year cycle wil shall begin on October 1, 2019 (F¥20) and
end September 30, 2021. (F¥-22)

(b)The next 3-year cycle will begin October 1, 2021 and continue to occur
after the completion of each 3-year state ef-Michigan fiscal-year cycle.

(3) Every A fire service member, regardless of thei-his or her rank, shall;
at a minimum; meet the fire fighter continuing education requirements
during the 3-year state ef-Michigan fiscal-year cycle, except as otherwise
provided in this rule.

(4) All training that is conducted in a council-approved sanetioned
course, Q course approved conference, approved Q course on-line training
platform, {What is an online training platform?} or training conducted by an
organized fire department in this state shall-wH-count towards-meeting the
continuing education requirement if a training roster was completed, and
signed by the instructor, and submitted to the bureau.

(a) For continuing education training to count toward a continuing
education requirement, the-an instructor reeds-te shall complete a fire
department specific training roster or may-use the BFS-200 the bureau’s
continuing education training roster, BFS-200, if the training is provided
outside of a council-approved sanetioned course.

(b) If the continuing education training is part of a council-approved
sanctioned course, the training wil shall be tracked in SMOKE {Instead of
using SMOKE, should we say ‘the bureau’s information management system?
We've used this throughout the rest of the rules.} and the student and
instructor wiH shall sign the SMOKE roster and-both-the-studentsand
struetorwill-sigh-theroster for each training calendar day segment for
the course. {What is meant by a training calendar day segment?}

(5) Training transcripts from council-approved on-line course platforms
{What is meant by training transcripts and on-line course platforms?} {Please
remove the page break.} will-shall count towards the continuing education
requirements that are-shall be completed during the current 3-year cycle. &
is-the-student’s A student shall respensibility-te provide the on-line training
transcript to thel-his or her fire chief or the assigned fire chief’s designee.

(6) At the end of the 3-year cycle, eaech a fire service member wiH shall log
into SMOKE and check the box validating that they-have he or she has met
the continuing education requirements on thei his or her SMOKE profile.
After a fire service member ©Onee checks the box in SMOKE is-eheecked to
renew all classification certifications,-H-ispossible-thatapersoncould a

fire service member may be randomly audited by the bureau as part of g&



33

the bureau’s quality assurance process. by-the-bureay- A fire service
member who checks the box without having met completed the continuing
education requirements for each classification certification or certifications
in the 3-year cycle willresult-in-therevocation-of shall have his or her
classification certification or certifications revoked due to making a
materially false statement as outlined in R 29.410a. A fire service member
that-have who has not completed the required continuing education within
the 3-year cycle will be afferded allowed a 90-day grace period to complete
the continuing education requirements for the previous cycle.

(7) The following are the continuing education requirements for each
classification of certification.

(a) Fire fighter: ©btainr An individual who has been certified as a fire
fighter shall obtain atetal-ef 36 hours during the 3-year cycle with a
minimum of 6 hours per year, commensurate to meet the specific duties
and functions that the employee is expected to perform during the 3-year
cycle as a member of a fire department. {Should this also specify fire fighter I,
fire fighter Il, etc.?}

(i) For a fire fighter who is a member of more than 1 fire department, the
common training topic hours may be used at all the fire departments, if the
training is commensurate with common duties and functions performed at
each fire department. If 1 of the fire departments has specific duties or
functions that exceed the other fire departments duties or functions, the
member shall complete the additional training if identified by the AHJ
where the member is rostered

holding A member Who holds a classmcatlon certlflcatlon above the fire
fighter classification eentiruing-educationreguirement shall obtain the
required additional continuing education credits for that classification.

(i) Fire fighter continuing education is required for all Miehigan fire
fighters in this state, including those who were exempted from fire fighter |
or fire fighter Il certification due to being employed by a fire department
prior to October 1, 1988.

(b) Fire service instructor: An individuals eempleting who has completed
the fire instructor I classification or a higher classification and—whe—hwe

ms#ueter— and Who has been hav&beeeme certlfled as a flre service

instructor shall complete 12 hours of fire service instructor continuing
education by attending a council-approved fire instructor or MDHHS EMS
{Spell out} conference during the 3-year cycle.

(i) Fire service instructor continuing education is in addition to other
certification continuing education requirements.

(i) An individual who completes the next level of fire instructor
certification above the current instructor certification during that 3-year
cycle or maintains an EMS instructor coordinator license issued by

, pursuant to , shall have has met the continuing
education requirement for fire service instructor. {Does the state issue EMS



34

instructor coordinator licenses? If it does, then the statutory citation should be
noted.}

(9) Fire officer: An individual who has been certified as a fire officer shall
obtain 12 continuing education hours in subjects that include fire safety
and health, leadership, incident management, or fire tactics while attending
a council-approved course(s) or, training specific to the topics in this
section at their department, or attend a professional development
conference in the 3-year cycle. A fire officer may complete either the next
level of the nfpa certified fire officer certification above yewre-his or her
current nfpa certified fire officer certification during the 3-year cycle, attend
the national fire academy during the 3-year cycle, or complete a college
course with at least 3 credit hours related to the subjects specified in this
subrule abeve during the 3-year cycle.

(10) Fire inspector: An individual who has been certified as a fire
inspector shall complete all the requirements in Public Act 207 Rule set
R29.506 (60 credits, 10 minimum per year, in the 3-year cycle). {This
language needs to be clarified.}

(11) Fire investigator: An individual who has been certified as a fire
investigator shall obtain 12 hours of continuing education in the-subjectof
fire investigation in a 3- year cycle. A fire investigator may obtain the
required hours of continuing education either by attending conferences,
seminars, apé course sponsored by the international association of arson
investigators, conferences;-seminars;—and-courses or by attending council
approved conferences, seminars, and courses. An individual also may
attend during the 3-year cycle a fire investigation topic sponsored by the
national fire academy. during-the-3-yeareyele:

(12) Airport rescue fire fighter: An individual who is certified as an airport
rescue fire fighter shall complete the continuing education as required by
the federal aviation administration under Title 14 Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 139 for initial training, 14 CFR 139 (Please add the year of
the most current version of this CFR, as required by MOAHR. This
information should be in parentheses.)

(13) Hazardous-material responder: An individual who is certified as a
hazardous-material responder shall obtain 2 hours of continuing education
per year for-every-fire-service-membertratned-to-the-operationat-tevel
during the 3-year cycle. A fire service member who is trained above
hazardous material operations certification shall meet the requirements of
the AHJ (fire department, county hazmat team, RRTN MIOSHA Part 74).
{The language on AHJ etc. needs to be clarified.} Hazardous-material
responder continuing education hours-eanr may count toward the fire
fighter continuing education hours.

(14) Technical rescue responder: An individual who is certified as a
technical rescue responder shall obtain 2 hours per year of awareness for
all fire service members that could respond to an event outlined in nfpa
1670 for a total of 6 hours during the 3-year cycle. {The language on
‘awareness for all fire service members, etc. needs to be clarified. Not sure the



35

readers will know what this means.} A fire service member who has been
trained above the awareness level per nfpa 1670 must shall meet the
training requirements established by the AHJ (fire department, local county
or regional tech rescue team or training requirement required to be a
member of Michigan Task Force 1). Tech rescue responder continuing
education hours may count toward fire fighter continuing education hours.
{This language also needs to be clarified.}

(15) Fire chief-public safety director: An individual who is certified as a
fire chief or public safety director shall obtain attenrd-12 hours of
continuing education tratrtrg-at a council-approved leadership,
management, and fire officer training, or complete the next level of council-
approved nfpa 1021 fire officer certification during the 3- year cycle or
attend the national fire academy during the 3-year cycle.

&) If afire chief or public safety director is a certified fire officer, the fire
chief or public safety director shall enly be required to meet only the fire
chief-public safety director continuing education requirements.

An individual shall meet the continuing education requirements pursuant
to R29.418 in order to maintain certification for the fire instructor |
classification.(will add to each classification)

(8) An individual shall apply to the bureau on the bureau’s application,
BFS-205, for certification prior to taking the state certification course. An
individual shall be certified at the previous certification level prior to taking
the next level of certification pursuant to nfpa 1041 “Standard for Fire
Service Instructor Professional Qualifications”.



